MASTER AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

WEBBERVILLE BOARD OF EDUCATION

AND

WEBBERVILLE EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

JULY 1, 2017 – JUNE 30, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1	Recognition	
ARTICLE 2	Teacher Rights	1
ARTICLE 3	Rights of the Board	2
ARTICLE 4	Payroll Deduction	3
ARTICLE 5	Teaching Hours	3
ARTICLE 6	Class Size	4
ARTICLE 7	Professional Development	7
ARTICLE 8	Webberville Education Association Leave	8
ARTICLE 9	Sick Leave and Associated Leaves, Workers' Compensation	8
ARTICLE 10	Leaves of Absence	11
ARTICLE 11	Teacher Evaluation	14
ARTICLE 12	Mentor Teacher	
ARTICLE 13	Professional Behavior	16
ARTICLE 14	Student Discipline and Teacher Protection	16
ARTICLE 15	Curriculum Council	18
ARTICLE 16	Grievance Procedure	19
ARTICLE 17	Professional Qualifications	21
ARTICLE 18	Vacancies, Promotions, Assignments, and Transfers	22
ARTICLE 19	Compensation	23
ARTICLE 20	Insurance	24
ARTICLE 21	School Calendar	25
ARTICLE 22	Negotiation Procedures	26
ARTICLE 23	Seniority	27
ARTICLE 24	Reduction in Personnel	28
ARTICLE 25	Teaching Conditions	28
ARTICLE 26	Miscellaneous Provisions	31
ARTICLE 27	Duration of Agreement	32
APPENDIX A	2017-2018 Salary Schedule	33
	2018-2019 Salary Schedule	34
APPENDIX B	Extra-Curricular Assignments	35
	Extra-Curricular Salary Schedules	36
APPENDIX C	2018-20 School Calendars	37
APPENDIX D	Salary Lane Change Guidelines	
APPENDIX D-1	Credit Approval for Track Advancement Application	
APPENDIX D-2	Salary Lane Change Request Form	
APPENDIX E	Grievance Report Form	42
APPENDIX F	Statement of Intent to Return and Assignment Preference	44
APPENDIX G	Seniority Verification Form	

ARTICLE 1 Recognition

- A. The Webberville Board of Education (the BOARD), hereby recognizes the Webberville Education Association (the ASSOCATION) as the exclusive bargaining representative, as defined in Section II of the Public Employment Relations Act. 423.201 et seq. (PERA), for all classroom teachers, counselors, librarians and social workers.
- B. The BOARD agrees not to negotiate with any teachers' organization other than the ASSOCIATION for the duration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2 Teacher Rights

- A. Pursuant to PERA, the BOARD agrees that every teacher, guidance counselor, and librarian employee of the BOARD shall have the right to organize, join, and support the ASSOCIATION for the purpose of engaging in collective bargaining, negotiations, or other lawful activities for mutual aid and protection.
- B. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny any teacher of or to restrict any teacher from rights he/she may have under the Michigan General School Laws or other applicable laws and regulations.
- C. Both the BOARD and the ASSOCIATION recognize the right of the other to invoke the assistance of the State Mediation Board.
- D. The ASSOCIATION and its members shall have the right to use school building facilities for meeting according to a schedule arranged with the Superintendent. No teacher shall be prevented from wearing insignia or other identification of membership in the ASSOCIATION, within the confines of normal dress, either on or off school premises.
- E. In response to reasonable requests, the BOARD agrees to furnish to the ASSOCIATION all available information concerning the financial resources of the District, including but not limited to: annual financial reports and audits; register of certificated personnel; tentative budgetary requirements and allocations; agendas; minutes, and treasurers' reports of all BOARD meetings; membership data; names and addresses of all teachers, salaries paid thereto, degrees held, plus credits beyond, if possible, and such other information as will assist the ASSOCIATION in developing informed and constructive programs on behalf of the teachers and their students. However, in the event the estimated cost for furnishing the information exceeds fifty dollars (\$50), the BOARD reserves the right to charge the ASSOCIATION for the cost. The cost and timelines shall be calculated in accordance with the Michigan Freedom of Information Act and the Public Employment Relations Act.
- F. The BOARD shall notify the ASSOCIATION President on any major modification of fiscal, budgetary, or tax programs; construction programs; proposals for additional operational or building millage; or major revisions of educational policy which are proposed or under

- consideration, and the ASSOCIATION shall be given the opportunity to advise the BOARD with respect to said matters prior to their adoption and/or general publication.
- G. Membership in the ASSOCIATION shall not grant immunity to any teacher concerning teacher obligations.
- H. At each regular BOARD meeting, the BOARD shall place on the agenda, as an item of new business, any matters brought for its consideration by the ASSOCIATION President, so long as those matters are made known to the Superintendent's office seven (7) calendar days prior to said regular meeting, except in an emergency.
- 1. The provisions of the Agreement and the wages, hours, terms and conditions of employment shall be applied to all employees without regard to race, creed, religion, color, national origin, sex, marital or parental status, height, weight, disability, membership in or association with the activities of any employee organization, except as may otherwise be specified in this Agreement. Discrimination complaints within the jurisdiction of a state or federal agency arising out of this provision shall not be subject to the arbitration step of the grievance procedure, unless the relief/remedy requested through the grievance procedure cannot be granted within the jurisdiction of the state or federal agency.

ARTICLE 3 Rights of the Board

- A. The ASSOCIATION recognizes that the BOARD has the responsibility and authority to manage and direct all of the operations and activities of the District to the full extent authorized by law and that, except as otherwise modified by a specific term of this Agreement, the BOARD retains all such rights. These rights, except as so modified herein, include the rights to:
 - 1. Carry out the executive management and administrative control of the District, its properties and facilities, and the activities of its employees during their working hours.
 - 2. Hire all teachers and, subject to the provisions of the law, determine their qualifications and conditions for their continued employment or their dismissal or demotion or the promotion or transfer of all such employees.
 - Establish levels and courses of instruction, including special programs, and provide for the athletic, recreational, and social events for students, all as deemed necessary and advisable by the BOARD. Teachers' recommendations are to be valued by the BOARD.
 - 4. Select, approve, and purchase the textbooks to be used by the students. Monitor the use of other teaching materials, the means and methods of instruction, and the use of teaching aids of all types. Teachers' recommendations are to be valued by the BOARD.

- B. Except as otherwise provided herein, all rules, regulations, policies, procedures, and practices of the BOARD shall remain in full force and effect. They may be changed and updated from time to time, but in no way shall they conflict with any of the provisions set forth in this Agreement.
- C. The BOARD has the right to determine class schedule, hours of instruction and the duties, responsibilities, and assignments of employees with respect thereto. The exercise of the powers, duties, and responsibilities by the BOARD; the adoption of policies, rules, and regulations in furtherance thereof; and the use of judgement and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 4 Payroll Deductions

A. The BOARD shall make payroll deduction upon written authorization for insurance, annuities, savings bonds, Capital Area School Employees Credit Union, and any other financial institution authorized for direct deposit.

ARTICLE 5 Teaching Hours

- A. The Board and the ASSOCIATION support the concept of cooperatively solving problems while meeting the needs of the parties who may be affected by the solution. Therefore, the Administration will seek input from members appointed by the ASSOCIATION by June 1st and before finalizing the daily schedule for teachers.
- B. To provide the necessary support and direction for the success of the committee in achieving its purpose the BOARD and the ASSOCIATION agree to the following:
 - 1. State requirements for minimum days and hours of student instruction as provided in the Revised School Code must be met.
 - 2. By May 1, the Superintendent will establish parameters (such as staffing, facilities, etc.).
 - 3. Efforts will be made to maintain a comparable work day and instructional day between the elementary and secondary buildings.
 - 4. All contractually agreed to conditions shall be incorporated into any agreed upon daily schedule, including the following:
 - a. The BOARD and ASSOCIATION recognize teachers work well beyond the minimum classroom hours. With appreciation for the responsibility and work of teachers, the BOARD wishes to establish business hours of teachers.

Therefore, the business day for teachers begins fifteen (15) minutes before and end (15) minutes after the student day unless there are staff meetings or professional development sessions as prescribed in this Agreement. Teachers may have the option of leaving at the end of the school day on the last day of the week.

- b. Courses can be scheduled before or after school hours with teacher agreement and a minimum number of students are required.
- c. No more than twenty-seven and one-half (27.5) hours of student instruction per teacher, per week. Half days will be 3.25 hours of instruction.
- d. A minimum of thirty (30) minutes duty-free lunch per day.
- e. The average teacher daily planning/conference time will be comparable among the three (3) school levels (high school, middle school, elementary school). Comparable is defined as not greater than fifteen (15) minutes difference among the three (3) school levels. Likewise, regardless of the schedule, no school level will have less than fifty-two (52) minutes of planning time.
- f. The hourly rate of pay shall be based on a six and one-half (6.5) hour work day.
- g. The calendar(s) provided for in Appendix C shall govern the teachers' contract year, including breaks and holidays.
- 5. The committee will be provided with any additional information needed, such as budget, revenues, expenditures, etc.
- 6. The daily schedule(s) will be presented to the Superintendent by the principals for approval at the June BOARD meeting. If a consensus decision has not been reached by the June BOARD meeting, the current schedule(s) shall remain in place provided the District continues to receive its full State Aid. However, if the District would suffer a loss of full State Aid as a result of continuing the current schedule, then the BOARD would determine the daily schedule.
- 7. By mutual agreement between the ASSOCATION and the BOARD, the Article may be re-opened during the life of this agreement.

ARTICLE 6 Class Size

A. The parties recognize that optimum school facilities for both the student and teacher are desirable to ensure the high quality of education that is the goal of both the ASSOCIATION and the BOARD. It is also acknowledged that the primary duty and responsibility of the teacher is to teach and that the organization of the school and the school day should be directed toward ensuring that the energy of the teacher is primarily utilized to this end.

Because the student-teacher ratio is an important aspect of an effective educational program, the parties agree that class size should be developmentally appropriate whenever financially possible. To achieve these goals the ASSOCIATION and the BOARD agree to the following:

 Overages for a period of more than three (3) weeks will be compensated according to the Agreement.

Grades K-5th

- a. Kindergarten sections will have an optimum number of twenty-two (22) students per section and a maximum number of twenty-eight (28) students per section. If the student count is between twenty-three (23) and twenty-seven (27) students per section, a paraprofessional will be assigned to that section half-time. At twenty-eight (28) students per section, a paraprofessional will be assigned to that section full-time. If the kindergarten enrollment exceeds an average of twenty-eight (28) students per section, the teacher, principal, superintendent and BOARD representative will meet to determine the board course of action.
- b. First (1st) through fifth (5th) grade classes will have an optimum number of twenty-five (25) students per class and a maximum number of thirty (30) students per class. If the agreed to optimums cannot be met in grades one (1) through five (5), the following provisions shall apply:
 - i. To the extent possible, administration will attempt to keep classes evenly distributed.
 - ii. When financially feasible, and as determined by the classroom teacher and building principal, a Paraprofessional <u>will</u> be assigned to a classroom that is above the optimum size.
 - iii. It is understood that a Paraprofessional's primary function is classroom contact. Paraprofessional may be used in other capacities as determined by the teacher(s) and the building principal.
- c. Every attempt will be made to avoid a combination classroom. In the event a combination class is necessary, there will be an optimum number of twenty-three (23) students per class and a maximum number of twentyeight (28) students per class. If the agreed to optimums cannot be met in a combination classroom, the following provisions shall apply:
 - i. Every attempt will be made to assign a paraprofessional to the combination classroom. If hiring a paraprofessional is not economically feasible, the District will pursue other options to provide the needed support to the combination classroom teacher.

- ii. The paraprofessional's time will be determined by the combination teacher and the building principal.
- iii. It is understood that a Paraprofessional's primary function is classroom contact. Paraprofessionals may be used in other capacities as determined by the teacher(s) and the building principal.
- d. If there is a decision to have a classroom paraprofessional, the Administration will make every reasonable effort to have the Paraprofessional assigned no later than one (1) week from the enrollment count days referred to in Section A.
- e. Once a Paraprofessional has been assigned to a grade level, such Paraprofessional will not be withdrawn for the balance of the trimester/semester.
- f. In the event that the agreed to maximums in grades one (1) through five (5) cannot be met, extra compensation will be provided as follows:
 - Those teachers having over thirty (30) students shall be compensated at the rate of \$37 per student per trimester for each student in excess of thirty (30) students.
 - ii. Those teachers having over thirty-three (33) students shall be compensated at the rate of \$110 per student per trimester for each student in excess of thirty-three (33) students.
 - iii. Special subject teachers shall receive \$33 per students per semester for each student in excess of thirty-five (35) students.
 - iv. These provisions for extra compensation will be based on the figures obtained from the enrollment count referred to in Section A.

3. Grades 6th-12th

- a. At the secondary level, the normal class size shall not exceed thirty (30) students, except that:
 - i. Music classes will not be affected by this number.
 - ii. Physical education classes shall be limited to thirty-five (35) students per class period per teacher. If the class size exceeds thirty-five (35) students, the principal and physical education teacher will meet to determine a course of action.

- b. With the exception of music and physical education, extra compensation will be provided when a teacher may be required to provide instruction for more than thirty (30) students per class at the rate of \$33 per student per semester for each student in excess of thirty (30) students.
- 4. In the assignment of student to a class, the Administration shall take into consideration children that have been identified as special needs, through the SST, READ, IEP or any other process when considering class size.
- 5. By mutual agreement between the ASSOCIATION and the BOARD, this Article may be re-opened during the life of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 7 Professional Development

- A. Professional development shall be defined as:
 - 1. Visitation to view other instructional techniques for programs.
 - Conferences, workshops, online/virtual learning classes, or seminars conducted by colleges, universities, the MEA or NEA and/or affiliate departments, or other meetings of mutually agreed value.
- B. Professional development must support the goals established by the teacher's Individual Development Plan, Teacher Leaders, Department Chairs, School Improvement Plan, and/or the District's improvement plan. Professional development may also be used for instructional improvement or content expertise improvement for individual teachers. District-supported professional development must be approved in advance by administration.
- C. Reimbursement for expense of mileage, meals, housing, registration, and materials for approved conferences, workshops, and seminars shall be aligned with the financial resources available each year for professional development. Professional development resources will be used equitably between the elementary and secondary levels. Conferences required by the administration will be funded by the District. A teacher will be apprised in advance if any cost associated with the professional improvement is to be paid by the teacher.
- D. District-wide professional development Thirty (30) professional development hours shall be conducted on the days and hours designated for that purpose on the school calendar. If the state-mandated number of professional development hours should change, then the parties agree to meet and bargain a modification to the Agreement to comply with the required number of hours.
- E. Professional Business Days:
 - A teacher may use two (2) days per year as professional business days.
 Professional business days may be used for any educational purpose, upon mutual
 agreement.

- 2. A teacher planning to use a professional business day shall make a request of his/her principal at least one (1) week in advance of his/her absence.
- A teacher may be requested to file a written report within one week of his/her attendance at such visitation, conferences, workshops, or seminars. If a written report is requested, it shall be shared with the BOARD.
- 4. A teacher will be apprised in advance if any cost associated with the professional business day is to be paid by the teacher.
- 5. Professional development hours will not be counted as an absence.

ARTICLE 8 Webberville Education Association Leave

A. At the beginning of every school year, the ASSOCIATION shall be credited with seven (7) days to be used by teachers who are officers or agents of the ASSOCIATION, such use to be at the discretion of the ASSOCIATION. These days may be used at a minimum rate of one-half (1/2) day at a time. The ASSOCIATION agrees to notify the Administration no less than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date for intended use of said leave. Upon written request by the ASSOCIATION, the Superintendent may grant additional leave at his/her discretion.

ARTICLE 9

Sick Leave and Associated Leaves, Workers' Compensation

- A. For purposed of this Article, immediate family will be defined as spouse, parent or stepparent, parent-in-law, brother, sister, children, or step-children, ward, grandchildren, grandparents or other household dependent. Upon approval of the Superintendent, sick days may be used for others when the closeness of the relationship justifies it.
- B. On an annual basis, fifteen (15) sick leave days will be available for teachers with accumulation unlimited. For teachers employed after July 1, 1997, accumulation is limited to one (1) teacher work year, based on contractual obligations for a given year.
 - Personal Illness or disability A teacher may use sick leave to recover from his/her own illness or disability. Pregnancy related disability shall be treated, on written confirmation by the physician, as any other physical disability for which sick leave may be used.
 - 2. <u>Illness in the Immediate Family</u> A teacher may use sick leave for illness of immediate family members.
 - 3. After five (5) days of consecutive sick leave, or if there is reasonable suspicion of sick leave abuse, the BOARD, may require a doctor's statement of verification. If a fee is charged that is not covered by insurance, one-half (1/2) will be paid by the teacher and one-half (1/2) by the BOARD.

- 4. The substitute system is to be notified by 6:30AM the day any teacher is taking a sick leave day.
- C. <u>Sick Leave Payout Upon Retirement</u> Upon termination of service from Webberville Schools, teachers retiring from the teaching profession will receive 50% of their unused sick days up to 50 days [Example: If a teacher had accumulated sick days at time of retirement equaling 300, the teacher would be paid for 50% of 50 days. In other words, the teacher would be paid for 25 days.] The pay will be computed on the teacher's current hourly pay at the time of retirement. The retiree will have the option of receiving the payment within a two (2) year, three (3) year, four (4) year, or five (5) year period. By mutual agreement between the retiree and the BOARD, payment may be made in one lump sum. Retirement means:
 - 1. Attaining the age sixty (60) and having ten (10) or more years of service credit.
 - 2. Attaining age fifty-five (55) and having thirty (30) or more years of service credit.
 - 3. Attaining age fifty-five (55) while still working and having accumulated fifteen (15) or more years of service, but less than thirty (30), of which the last five (5) consecutive years are immediately preceding the teacher's retirement allowance effective date (however, the allowance under three (3) is permanently reduced one-half of one percent (1/2 of 1%) for each month from the date of retirement to the date the teacher would attain age sixty (60) and shall thereafter continue at the reduced rate.
 - 4. Any other combination of age and service that would make the retiring (under the retirement system) teacher eligible for retirement under the Michigan Public School Employees Retirement System.

Upon death of a retired teacher, receiving benefits under this provision, the balance of any amount owed will be paid to the teacher's designated beneficiary or in the absence of same, the estate of the teacher.

- D. Four (4) of the sick leave days will be available for personal business on an annual basis.
 - 1. A teacher choosing to use this time will notify his/her building principal at least three (3) days ahead of the days to be taken off, except in an emergency.
 - 2. A personal business leave day will not be granted for the day preceding or the day following holidays or vacations and the first and last days of the school year, unless approved by the administration. No more than two (2) teachers per building may be granted such leave for any one of the above defined days.
 - Personal business days shall not be scheduled during parent-teacher conferences.
 If an exception is sought, then an explanation must be provided and the Administration may grant approval.
- E. On an annual basis a teacher may use up to five (5) sick days per occurrence for bereavement in the event of the death of an immediate family member. The Superintendent may grant additional time in the event there are extenuating circumstance.

- F. <u>Bereavement Other Than Immediate Family</u> A teacher may use up to one (1) sick day per occurrence for the attendance at the funeral of a person outside the immediate family. Additional time may be granted by the Superintendent for extenuating circumstances such as long-distance travel, etc. Days for bereavement will not be counted as an absence on a teacher's evaluation.
- G. <u>Use of Sick Leave and Personal Business Days</u> Sick and personal days will be used at a minimum rate of one-half (1/2) day; any deviation from this will be at the discretion of the building principal.
- H. Workers' Compensation As soon as possible, a teacher who is absent because of an injury or disease compensable under the Michigan Workers' Disability Compensation Act shall make a written election of one of the following options at the time he/she becomes eligible for Workers' Compensation wage benefits, such election can be changed during the period of disability by providing appropriate notification to the District.
 - 1. The teacher may elect to receive the difference between his/her regular salary and the amount received as Workers' Compensation wage benefits. Such difference in salary shall be computed on a percentage basis, and this same percentage shall be deducted from the teacher's sick leave accumulation. [Example: If Workers' Compensation pays 60% of full pay, sick leave will pay only 40% and the sick leave accumulation shall be charged .4 of a day for each day so used.] Under this alternative, the teacher's District-paid contractual fringe benefits shall be maintained so long as accumulated sick leave is being proportionately drawn.
 - 2. The teacher may elect to receive Workers' Compensation benefits only and shall be granted an unpaid Miscellaneous Leave of Absence under Article 10, Section D, of this Agreement. The application deadlines of Article 10, Section D, shall be waived and any requested extension of the leave shall be granted. District-paid fringe benefits shall not be in force during unpaid leave.
 - 3. The teacher may utilize his/her accumulated sick leave for each day absent provided that he/she reimburses the BOARD for the amount of Workers' Compensation wage benefits received for the corresponding pay period. If a teacher elects to utilize sick leave benefits as described in this subparagraph, he/she shall continue to be eligible for District-paid fringe benefits while accumulated sick leave is being drawn.

The District will take the necessary appropriate action to report such disability so that retirement service credit may be obtained.

ARTICLE 10

Leaves of Absence

- A. <u>Educational Sabbatical Leave</u> Teachers who have been employed for seven (7) years may be granted an educational sabbatical leave for one (1) year. During said sabbatical leave, the teacher shall be considered to be in the employ of the BOARD and shall be paid the difference between his/her salary and the hiring of a teacher to replace him/her.
 - A teacher, upon return from a sabbatical leave, shall be restored to a position for which the teacher is certified and qualified and shall advance on the salary schedule as he/she would have been had he/she taught in the District during such period.
 - 2. A teacher taking a sabbatical leave shall agree to remain in the employ of the school District for a period of two (2) school years commencing with the return year. Should a teacher desire not to continue with the District after a sabbatical, he/she may do so by returning the salary differential he/she was paid during his/her leave. The salary differential must be paid back previous to the beginning of the new school year.
- B. <u>Child Care Leave</u> Immediately following pregnancy, disability, sick leave, or adoption, an unpaid child care leave shall be granted for a period of no more than twelve (12) months. At the time of application for such leave, the teacher shall, in writing, notify the district of the beginning and ending dates of such leave. It is expected that the teacher will notify the BOARD, in writing, of his/her intent to return to the Webberville Community Schools sixty (60) Calendar days prior to the completion of the leave.
 - 1. Such leave shall be with insurance as stipulated in Article 20 of this Agreement.
 - 2. The District may grant an extension of such leave under the same conditions as above for a second period of no more than twelve (12) months.
 - The teacher shall return to a position for which he/she is certified and qualified. The teacher shall not advance on the salary schedule during the time spent on child care leave.
 - 4. Days for child care will not be counted as an absence on a teacher's evaluation.
- C. General Leave of Absence After ten (10) years of teaching, seven (7) of which must be in the Webberville Community Schools, a general leave of absence of up to one (1) year shall be granted to a teacher upon application under the following conditions.
 - Such leave shall be with insurance as stipulated in Article 20 of this Agreement. No other benefits, including salary, will be provided for the duration of the general leave of absence.
 - 2. Such leave shall correspond with the beginning and ending of the next school year.
 - 3. Application for a general leave of absence must be submitted prior to April 1.

- 4. The teacher shall notify the BOARD, in writing, of his/her intention to return to the Webberville Community Schools by April 1.
- 5. The teacher shall return to a position for which he/she is certified and qualified. The teacher shall not advance on the salary schedule during the time spent on leave.
- 6. No more than one (1) teacher K-5 and one (1) teacher 6-12 may be on a general leave of absence at any one time. If there are more applicants than leaves available, the teacher(s) with the most seniority shall be granted the leave(s).
- At the BOARD'S sole discretion, additional general leaves of absence may be granted.
- 8. Once a teacher has completed a general leave of absence he/she will once again become eligible for another general leave of absence by meeting the qualifications as contained above, including an additional ten (10) years of service.
- D. <u>Miscellaneous Leave of Absence</u> A miscellaneous leave of absence of up to one (1) year may be granted to a teacher upon application under the following conditions:
 - Such leave shall be without salary or fringe benefits; however, for such leave of short duration, not to exceed thirty (30) days, the fringe benefits shall continue to be paid by the BOARD.
 - Application for a miscellaneous leave must be submitted no less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the requested effective date of the leave. Such application must state the requested beginning and ending dates for the leave. In a case of extenuating circumstances, the Superintendent may waive the thirty (30) day requirement.
 - 3. The teacher will notify the BOARD, in writing, of intent to return to the Webberville Community Schools by April 1 or sixty (60) calendar days prior to the completion of the leave (but in no case less than thirty (30) calendar days).
 - 4. The teacher shall return to a position for which he/she is certified and qualified. The teacher shall not advance on the salary schedule during the time spent on leave except as follows:
 - a. If the leave is for less than 25% of teacher calendar workdays, no salary schedule credit shall be lost for the period of the leave.
 - b. If the leave is for 25% or more of teacher calendar workdays, but less than 75% of teacher calendar workdays, one-half (1/2) year's salary schedule credit shall be granted to the teacher.
 - c. If the leave is for 75% or more teacher calendar workdays or more, no salary schedule credit shall be granted to the teacher.
 - 5 The District may grant an extension of such leave, under the same conditions as set forth herein, for a period of up to one (1) year.
- E. <u>Jury Duty</u> No loss of pay shall occur as the result of jury duty. Any mileage fees or meal allowances paid by the court to the teacher belong to the teacher as reimbursement for

expenses with no effect on regular salary. A teacher called for jury duty will submit proof of service to the Superintendent and written documentation as to the amount of jury duty pay received. The teacher may be required to reimburse the BOARD the amount of jury duty pay received. Jury Duty will not be counted as an absence.

F. <u>Family and Medical Leave</u> — Child includes any individual under 18 for whom the employee serves in loco parentis; a child over 18 who is incapable of self-care because of physical or mental disability; or a biological, adopted, or foster child.

The maximum accumulated leave time granted pursuant to this section shall be limited to twelve (12) full work weeks (60 working days) during the school District's normal fiscal year (July 1 - June 30).

- 1. Upon request, the employer shall grant a leave of absence to any bargaining unit employee, pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), for the following reasons:
 - a. The serious health condition of the employee; or
 - b. The serious health condition of the employee's immediate family member as outlined in the law, or
 - c. The birth of a child; or
 - d. The placement of a child for adoption or foster care.
- Upon return from the leave, the employee shall be returned to the position held immediately before the leave began. If the position no longer exists, the employee shall return to a position equivalent to pay, benefits, hours and other terms and conditions of employment.
- 3. The employer shall have the option of first requiring the use of accumulated paid sick leave, vacation, and/or personal leave during the leave. The remainder of any leave time will be unpaid. However, the employee has the option of retaining up to five (5) sick days for use during the remainder of the leave year.
- 4. Insurance benefits will be continued during the leave under the same conditions and at the same level as if the employee were still at work.
- 5. Seniority shall continue to accrue during the leave.
- 6. The employee shall have the right to take the leave on a reduced or intermittent schedule as outlined in the law.
- 7. The employee shall provide the employer at least thirty (30) calendar days written notice of the request for the leave when the need is foreseeable. It will include the reason for the request, the expected beginning date, and the expected ending date.
- 8. Leaves taken under Article 9 shall be charged against FMLA limits beginning with the 31st day of paid sick leave. The FMLA leave shall then run concurrently with the paid sick leave until the FMLA leave limit is exhausted or the teacher returns to work. If the teacher does not have sufficient paid sick leave to reach thirty (30) days of paid leave, the FMLA leave shall begin at the point the teacher no longer has

any paid sick leave and it shall run until the FMLA limit is exhausted or the teacher returns to work. Leaves requested pursuant to Section A through E above shall not be charged against the FMLA limits.

9. Days for FMLA will not be counted as an absence.

ARTICLE 11 Teacher Evaluation

- A. The parties recognize the importance and value of developing a procedure for assisting and evaluating the progress and success for both newly employed and experienced personnel. The performance of all teachers, including guidance counselors, social workers, speech pathologists and librarians, shall be evaluated in writing. All evaluations will be conducted in accordance with the Teacher Tenure Act.
- B. Teachers will be notified each year which administrator will be their evaluator. It is understood that there may be circumstances where the evaluator may ask another district administrator to be present in an observation. It is further understood that the evaluator will have sole responsibility for writing the evaluation.
 - 1. Evaluation of probationary and tenure teachers
 - a. Probationary teachers shall be evaluated a minimum of two (2) times during the school year. Each probationary teacher shall be provided with an individualized development plan. Evaluations of probationary teachers shall reflect the goals of the IDP.
 - b. <u>Tenured Teachers</u>: Tenured teachers shall be evaluated at least once a year or in accordance with the Teacher Tenure Act.
 - 2. A mid-year progress report must be provided to all first year probationary teachers and any other teacher who received a rating of "minimally effective" or "ineffective" on his or her most recent year-end reevaluation.

ARTICLE 12 Mentor Teacher

- A. <u>Definition and Purpose</u> A mentor teacher shall be defined as a master teacher as identified in Section 1526 of the School Code and shall perform the duties of a master teacher as specified in the code.
- B. Each bargaining unit employee in his/her first three (3) years in the classroom shall be assigned a mentor teacher by the Superintendent of designee. However, a fourth or fifth (4th or 5th) year of mentorship may be assigned at the request of the teacher or at the discretion of the administration. The mentor teacher shall be available to provide professional support, instruction and guidance to the mentee. The purpose of the mentor

- assignment is to provide a peer who can offer assistance, resources and information in a non-threatening collegial fashion.
- C. <u>Mentor Teacher Assignment</u> All bargaining unit employees shall be notified of the available position of the mentor teacher(s). A mentor teacher shall be assigned by the Superintendent in accordance with the following:
 - Primary consideration for mentor teacher positions will be given to tenured bargaining unit employees with at least five (5) years of classroom teaching experience. When possible, mentor teacher positions will be given to teachers whose classroom teaching experience has been at Webberville Community Schools.
 - 2. Participation as a mentor teacher shall be voluntary. If no volunteer is available, the Superintendent or designee will assign a mentor teacher.
 - 3. The District shall immediately notify the ASSOCATION president when a mentor teacher is matched with a bargaining unit employee (mentee). The assignment of the mentor teacher shall be finalized by the administrator within twenty (20) workdays of the knowledge that a mentor teacher is needed.
 - 4. Every effort will be made to match mentor teachers and mentees who work in the same building and have the same area of certification.
 - 5. A mentee shall be assigned only one (1) mentor teacher at a time. A mentor teacher may not be assigned more than two (2) mentees at any one time.
 - 6. The mentor teacher assignment shall be for one (1) year. The appointment may be renewed in succeeding years provided the parties agree.
 - 7. Should either the mentor teacher or the mentee present cause to dissolve the relationship, the Superintendent or designee and a representative of the ASSOCIATION will meet with the mentor teacher and the mentee to determine an appropriate course of action.

Relationship of Mentor and Mentee – The purpose of the mentor/mentee relationship is to assist the mentee to: gain an understanding of best practices for quality instruction; provide a one-to-one relationship with a peer as the mentee becomes acclimated to his/her role as a teacher; and ensure that the District's educational philosophy is being imparted to the mentee.

- D. <u>Release Time</u> Both the mentor and the mentee will be provided release time as needed, with the approval of the building principal.
 - It is also understood that time between the mentor teacher and the mentee will necessarily take place weekly beyond the normal working day to establish this collaborative relationship. Where possible, the mentor teacher and mentee shall be assigned common preparation time.
 - 2. Mentees shall be provided with a minimum of fifteen (15) days of professional development during their first three (3) years of classroom teaching.

E. <u>Compensation</u> – A mentor teacher shall receive additional annual compensation in accordance with Schedule B.

ARTICLE 13 Professional Behavior

- A. Professional Behavior/Professional Practices Committee
 - 1. The Professional Practices Committee shall be composed of three (3) elementary and three (3) secondary teachers. Their responsibility shall be to investigate concerns raised about teaching practices and/or professional behavior, and, where warranted, to meet and counsel with the teacher, and to assist the teacher in reaching his/her potential. A list of committee members shall be given to the administration ten (10) working days after the commencement of school.
 - 2. The BOARD recognizes that the Code of Ethics as adopted by the National Education Association (NEA) is considered by the ASSOCIATION and its membership to define acceptable criteria of professional behavior. The ASSOCIATION shall accept responsibility to deal with ethical problems in accordance with the terms of the Code of Ethics by establishing a Professional Practices Committee.
 - 3. Both the BOARD and the ASSOCIATION agree that inclusive in the Code of Ethics is the importance of having a positive attitude and outlook and that the lack of such an attitude can affect the performance of both teachers and students. It shall be the responsibility of the BOARD to work with the Professional Practices Committee in taking all steps necessary to develop positive teaching practices.
 - 4. Alleged breaches of discipline or the Code of Ethics shall be promptly reported to the offending teacher and to the ASSOCIATION President and will be referred to the Professional Practices Committee. The Committee shall hear both parties and will make recommendations and shall provide mentoring as needed. The ASSOCATION will do its best effort to correct breaches of professional behavior by any teacher.

ARTICLE 14

Student Discipline and Teacher Protection

- A. The BOARD recognizes its responsibility to give all reasonable support and assistance to teachers with respect to the maintenance of control and discipline in the classroom, and teachers recognize their responsibility to give reasonable support and assistance to the BOARD. A committee of teacher and administration will meet yearly to evaluate the student handbooks in preparation for the BOARD'S annual review.
- B. It is recognized that discipline problems are less likely to occur in classes which are well taught, where a high level of student interest is maintained and where administrative

- backing is readily observable. It is likewise recognized that when discipline problems occur, they may most constructively be dealt with by encouragement, praise and emphasis upon the child's desirable characteristics.
- C. A teacher shall not inflict or cause to be inflicted corporal punishment upon any student under any circumstances. However, a teacher may use reasonable force upon a student as necessary to maintain order and control in a school or school-related setting for the purpose of providing an environment conducive to safety and learning in accordance with the Michigan Revised School Code 380.1312. In maintaining that order and control, the teacher may use reasonable force upon a student as may be necessary for one (1) or more of the following reasons:
 - To restrain or remove a student whose behavior is interfering with the orderly exercise and performance of the school district or functions within a school or at a school-related activity if that student has refused to comply with a request to refrain from further disruptive acts.
 - 2. For self-defense or the defense of another.
 - 3. To guell a disturbance that threatens physical injury to any person.
 - 4. To obtain possession of a weapon or other dangerous object upon or within the control of the student.
 - 5. To protect property.
- D. A teacher may exclude a student from a class, subject, or activity and follow the SNAP suspension procedure when the grossness of the offense, the persistence of the misbehavior, or the disruptive effect of the violation makes the continued presence of the student in the classroom or activity intolerable. The teacher will furnish the principal or designee, as promptly as his/her teaching obligation will allow, full particulars of the incident on the designated form and send the student to the office. Even if the principal/designee is not in his/her office, the student will be kept under appropriate supervision. The teacher will follow the law and District policy with regard to parent contact. This procedure may be revised by mutual agreement of both parties.
- E. It is understood that the authority to implement a suspension or invoke other disciplinary measures in accordance with the student handbook rests with the building administrator or BOARD.
- F. Expulsion of students from school may be imposed only by the BOARD. School authorities, after consultation with the teacher or teachers involved, will endeavor to achieve correction of student misbehavior through counseling and interviews with the child and his/her parents/guardians when warranted. Transfer of the student to another teacher may be considered only after all options have been exhausted.
- G. All policies with regard to student discipline shall be applied in a manner consistent with the rights secured under federal and state law to students who are determined to be eligible for special education programs and services. Teachers shall be afforded all rights and protections consistent with these laws.

- H. Reporting and Investigating Any school employee who believes they have been assaulted by a student in connection with their employment shall report the incident to their administrator or immediate supervisor in writing. The district shall promptly investigate the incident and make a full written report to the superintendent within ten (10) days of the date the incident is initially reported by the employee. The report shall be provided to the ASSOCIATION and the impacted employee(s) at the same time it is provided to the Superintendent.
- I. Law Enforcement Notification If requested by the school employee, the District shall promptly notify local law enforcement officials of any alleged assault by a student against a school employee and ask law enforcement to conduct an investigation into the potential criminal conduct of the student. This provision applies to any student in any grade level, including special education students, regardless of the level of impairment of disability.
- J. Legal Counsel The BOARD shall reimburse the teacher up to \$1000 for the teacher to obtain legal counsel to advise the teacher of his/her rights and obligations with respect to such assault. The BOARD shall provide other reasonable assistance to the teacher in connection with handling of the incident by the law enforcement and judicial authorities, including paid leave time for the purpose of meeting with law enforcement and judicial authorities and attending court proceedings related to the assault.

ARTICLE 15 Curriculum Council

- A. Curriculum Council is an effective means of providing leadership, coordination, and quality control of curriculum and instructional improvement efforts. The Council helps to develop ownership and support for curriculum study and development. It is a decision-making body that reviews and recommends curriculum changes, instructional programs, and assessment practices. The Curriculum Council provides recommendations to the Superintendent, and ultimately to the Board of Education.
- B. The Curriculum Council voting memberships consists of building principals, curriculum director, and two WEA elected representatives from each building. The Superintendent will serve in an advisory capacity.
 - Meetings of the Curriculum Council will be determined by the Curriculum Director or Superintendent held at a time and place which will be set during the August meeting and agreed upon by a majority of members present. Consideration will be given to a time and place that is conducive to attendance by a majority of members.
 - 2. Minutes of Curriculum Council meetings will be distributed to all staff employees, and posted on the District website.
 - 3. The subjects of study shall include, but not limited to:
 - a. Curriculum development
 - b. Professional development
 - c. Selection and use of textbooks

- 4. Voluntary subcommittees may be established as necessary.
- 5. The Superintendent shall present recommendations to the BOARD from the Council.
- Any recommendation approved by the BOARD shall be communicated to the Committee.

ARTICLE 16 Grievance Procedure

- A. A claim by a teacher or the ASSOCIATION that there has been a violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of any provision of the Agreement may be processed as a grievance as hereinafter provided. The term "work day" shall be defined as days when teachers are scheduled to work during the academic year and days that the central office is open for business during the summer break period between academic years.
- B. In the event that a teacher believes there is a basis for a grievance, he/she shall first discuss the alleged grievance with his/her building principal, accompanied by his/her ASSOCIATION representative. The discussion shall take place within ten (10) work days of the date of the occurrence or first knowledge of the occurrence upon which the alleged grievance is based.
- C. If, as a result of the informal discussion with the building principal and the ASSOCIATION representative in Section B, a grievance still exists, the teacher may invoke the formal grievance procedure through the ASSOCIATION no later than ten (10) work days after the meeting with the building principal and the ASSOCIATION representative, on the form set forth in Appendix E, signed by the grievant and the ASSOCATION representative. A copy of the grievance form shall be delivered to the principal. If the grievance involves more than one school building, it may be filed with the Superintendent or designee.
- D. Within five (5) work days of receipt of the grievance, the principal shall meet with the ASSOCIATION representative in an effort to resolve the grievance. The principal shall indicate his/her disposition of the grievance in writing within five (5) work days of such meeting and shall furnish a copy thereof to the ASSOCATION president.
- E. If the ASSOCIATION is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance or if no disposition has been made within five (5) work days of such meeting (or ten (10) work days from the date of filing, whichever shall be later), the grievance shall be transmitted within five (5) work days to the Superintendent. Within seven (7) work days of receiving the grievance, the Superintendent or his/her designee shall meet with the ASSOCIATION president about the grievance and shall indicate his/her disposition of the grievance in writing within five (5) work days of such meeting and shall furnish a copy thereof to the ASSOCIATION president.
- F. If the ASSOCIATION is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance by the Superintendent or his/her designee or if no disposition has been made within five (5) work days of such meeting (or twelve (12) work days from the date of filing, whichever shall be later), the grievance shall be transmitted to the BOARD within five (5) work days by filing a

written copy thereof with the Secretary or other designee of the BOARD. The BOARD, no later than its next regular meeting or ten (10) work days, whichever shall be later, shall meet with the ASSOCIATION on the grievance. Disposition of the grievance in writing by the BOARD shall be made no later than seven (7) work days thereafter. A copy of such disposition shall be furnished to the ASSOCIATION president.

- G. If the grievance is still not settled at this point and the ASSOCIATION is not satisfied with the disposition by the BOARD, the grievance may be submitted to arbitration. The ASSOCIATION president shall notify the BOARD of the ASSOCIATION's intent to arbitrate the grievance within thirty (30) calendar days after disposition by the BOARD. If within five (5) work days of notification, the parties have been unable to mutually agree upon an arbitrator, he/she shall be selected by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its rules. The demand for arbitration must be filed with the American Arbitration Association within fifteen (15) work days of the date the ASSOCIATION notified the BOARD of its intent to arbitrate the grievance. The BOARD and the ASSOCIATION shall not be permitted to assert in such arbitration proceedings any grounds or to rely on any evidence not previously disclosed to either party.
- H. Powers of the Arbitrator It shall be the function of the arbitrator and he/she shall be empowered, except as his/her powers are limited below, after due investigation, to make a decision in cases of alleged violation of the specific Articles and Sections of the Agreement.
 - He/she shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter or modify any
 of the terms of the Agreement.
 - 2. He/she shall have no power to establish salary scales or change any salary rate.
 - 3. He/she shall have no power to rule on any of the following:
 - a. The termination of services of or failure to re-employ any probationary teacher.
 - b. The failure to award a vacant non-bargaining unit administrative position to a bargaining unit employee.
 - c. The termination of services or failure to re-employ any teacher to a position on the extra-curricular schedule.
 - d. Any claim or complaint subject to the procedures specified in the Teachers' Tenure Act (Act IV Public Acts, extra session, of 1937 of Michigan as amended).
 - e. The subject matter of any prohibited or illegal bargaining subject under PERA.
 - 4. He/she shall have no power to change any practice, policy, or rule of the BOARD nor to substitute his/her judgement for that of the BOARD as to the reasonableness of any such practice, policy, rule, or any action taken by the BOARD.
 - His/her powers shall be limited to deciding whether the BOARD has violated the express Articles or Sections of this Agreement. He/she shall not imply obligations and conditions binding upon the BOARD from this Agreement, it being understood

- that any matter not specifically set forth herein remains within the reserved rights of the BOARD.
- 6. In rendering decisions, an arbitrator shall give due regard to the responsibility of management and shall so construe the Agreement that there will be no interference with such responsibilities, except as they may be specifically conditioned by this Agreement.
- 7. In the event that a case is appealed to an arbitrator on which he/she has no power to rule, it shall be referred back to parties without decision or recommendation on its merits.
- 8. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be paid by the initiating party.
- 9. Both parties agree that the decision of the panel is final and binding and that judgement thereon may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction.
- The time limits provided in the Article shall be strictly observed but may be extended by written agreement of the parties. In the event a grievance is filed after May 15 of any years, the strict adherence to the time limits may result in hardship to any party. The BOARD shall use its best efforts to process such grievance prior to the end of the school term or as soon thereafter as possible.
- J. If an individual teacher has a personal complaint which he/she desires to discuss with a supervisor, he/she is free to do so without recourse to the grievance procedure. However, no grievance shall be adjusted without prior notification to the ASSOCIATION president and an opportunity for an ASSOCATION representative to be present, nor shall any adjustment of a grievance be inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement.
- K. If a tenured teacher through the grievance procedure shall have been found to have been improperly deprived of any professional compensation or advantage, the same or its equivalent in money shall be paid to her/him.

ARTICLE 17 Professional Qualifications

- A. "Qualification" or "qualified" shall mean that the teacher:
 - a. Possesses a major or minor appropriate to his/her assignment; and
 - b. Meets all applicable standards for a "highly qualified" teacher under the No Child Left Behind Act, including NCLB Final Regulations, 34 CFR 200-55-200.56, and the Michigan Definition for identifying Highly Qualified teachers, as approved by the State Board of Education; and
 - c. Meets the qualifications approved by the Board of Education as written in the job posting and in the job description.
- B. Except for those Appendix B positions directly connected with an assigned class, e.g., band, choir, yearbook, theater, and musical productions, any assignment(s) in addition to the normal teaching schedule during the regular school year, including adult education

courses, driver education, extra duties enumerated in Appendix B, and summer school courses, shall not be obligatory, but shall be with the consent of the bargaining unit employee. With the exception of varsity coaching, preference in making such assignments will be given to those teachers best qualified for the position. In the event there is an assignment that the BOARD is not able to recruit a teacher volunteer, the District may hire from outside the bargaining unit.

A bargaining unit employee who accepts a regular class assignment, which has an Appendix B position directly connected to it, has an inherent obligation to conduct the Appendix B position duties. The BOARD will identify in the job posting and in the job description the classroom assignments which has an Appendix B position associated with the assignment.

- C. Each teacher must record a current teacher's certificate or appropriate credential with the Superintendent, to be returned personally by his/her designated representative, or by registered mail, when the employee leaves the system. Non-certified teachers employed in accordance with the School Code, Section 380.1233b, shall furnish to the Superintendent all credentials and documents so specified under Section 380.1233b.
- D. Persons with less than a Bachelor's Degree who are eligible only for the Michigan Substitute Teacher permit shall be employed by the BOARD on a day-to-day substitute basis and for no more than ninety (90) work days per school year, except in cases of extreme emergency.
- E. Teachers may be given up to five (5) years of credit on Appendix A (Salary Schedule) for yeas taught in other public school district. If there is a recognized need to grant more than five (5) years of credit, the BOARD and the ASSOCIATION agree to discuss the reasons for an exception on a case-by-case basis and enter into a written agreement to memorialize the understandings reached. In any event, no more than ten (10) years of credit will be granted to a teacher.

ARTICLE 18

Vacancies, Promotions, Assignments, and Transfers

- A. Vacancy definition A vacancy shall be defined as a position which is unfilled because it is either newly created or because the person who held the position terminated his/her employment as a bargaining unit member (e.g., by retirement, resignation, transfer to a non-bargaining unit position, or death). A vacancy shall be considered to occur at the time at which the teacher terminates his/her employment or a position is newly created.
- B. To further promulgate the value of hiring capable individuals to fill vacancies that occur in the teaching staff, all teachers shall notify the Superintendent of Schools of their desire to return the following year by completing Appendix F. This notification by a teacher planning to return shall be made by June 1. This procedure shall enable the BOARD to hire new teachers at a time when prospective teachers are seeking new positions.
- C. Requests by a teacher for a voluntary reassignment or transfer to a different grade level within the school setting, course, department, or change in school setting shall be made by completing Appendix F, a copy to be filed with the ASSOCIATION president and with the

Superintendent. The application shall set forth the reasons for reassignment or transfer, the applicant's qualifications, and grade level, department, or school setting sought. Such requests shall be renewed once each year to assure active consideration by the administration.

ARTICLE 19 Compensation

- A. The basic salaries of teachers, guidance counselors, and librarians covered by this Agreement are set forth in Appendix A, which is attached to and incorporated in this Agreement. Such salary schedule shall remain in effect during the designated periods.
- B. A teacher's hourly rate is to be determined by dividing his/her annual regular salary by the product of six and one half (6 1/2) hours per day times the number of calendar days in the Master Agreement.
- C. Payment for voluntary extra duty assignments shall be set forth in Appendix B, or elsewhere in this Agreement, and shall be compensated in accordance with the provision of this Agreement without deviation.
- D. Teachers required to substitute on their planning time shall be paid thirty dollars (\$30.00) per hour or should receive compensatory time equivalent to the time substituted.
- E. Classes taught before or after the regular school day shall be compensated at the Appendix A salary schedule hourly rate, when the class is in addition to a full day schedule.
- F. All part-time teachers shall receive the following:
 - Salary pro-rated according to scale
 - 2. Pro-rated benefits
 - 3. All other contractual benefits, including sick days earned at their current rate of pro-ration

ARTICLE 20

Insurance

The BOARD agrees to furnish to all employees covered by this Agreement the following insurance benefits.

A. The BOARD agrees to provide health insurance to all full-time employees (insurance for part-time employees is prorated) with the WEA choosing the health insurance plan(s) to be used. The board will pay the following health care insurance cost toward the purchase of one of the following health insurance plans: HMO from Blue Care Network or Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Michigan PPO.

Single:

\$375.00

Double:

\$840.00

Family:

\$1,020.00

The monthly health care insurance cost includes the premium paid to the carrier, the monthly HSA amount and any applicable taxes and fees. Any applicable monthly health care insurance cost that is more than the above amounts will be the employee's responsibility and shall be paid via payroll deductions.

- B. The pro-ration for insurance benefits will be based on the percentage of time worked applied to the Board contribution (Example: if an employee works 65%, then he/she shall receive 65% of the Board's insurance contribution.)
- C. Benefits for staff working through the end of the school year and retiring/resigning or being placed on layoff status will have benefits through August 31st provided staff pay their monthly premium share.

Plan A:

Medical Plan Options:

Blue Care Network HMO BCN HSA HMO 1350/2700 0% Deductible \$1350 Single \$2700 Family

Rx: \$10/\$30/\$60/\$80/20% (max \$200) Generic/20% (max \$300)

Coinsurance: None

Maximum Out-Of-Pocket: \$2,350/\$4,700

WCS HSA contribution: \$1,350 single/\$2,700 two-person or family (included as part of district

monthly contribution)

Blue Cross Blue Shield of Michigan PPO BCBSM Simply Blue HSA PPO 1300/2600 0%

Deductible \$1300 Single \$2600 Family

Coinsurance: None

Maximum Out-Of-Pocket: \$2,300/\$4,600

Rx: \$10 Generic/\$40 Brand/\$80 Non-Formulary Brand (after deductible)

WCS HSA Contribution: \$1,300 Single/\$2,600 two-person or family (included as part of district

monthly contribution)

Other Benefits:

Delta Dental Plan:

100/90/90/90: \$1,500

Vision: LTD Plan VSP-3

66 2/3%

60 calendar day \$6,000 maximum Freeze on Offset

Alcohol/drug addiction and Mental/nervous

same as any other illness

Life:

\$35,000 with AD&D if enrolled in District Medical Plan

\$40,000 with AD&D if not enrolled in District Medical Plan

Plan B:

Staff shall have a cash option in lieu of health insurance in an amount equal to \$400 per month (pro-rated for part time employees) in addition to the other benefits listed above. Employees may invest these funds in any of the District's approved 403(b) providers. Any additional compensation shall be paid in equal installments with each paycheck. The additional compensation shall be subject to all required tax withholdings.

Should a bargaining unit employee choose to invest the additional compensation in a tax deferred annuity, a salary reduction agreement will be signed by the employee and filed with the payroll department. Bargaining unit employees who choose to invest beyond the additional compensation will also file a salary reduction agreement with the payroll department. An open enrollment period shall be provided whenever contribution subsidy amounts change for the group.

HSAs will be made in two installments (50% each) on the first day of business on or following January 1st and July 1st.

ARTICLE 21 School Calendar

A. The school calendar will be negotiated each year as part of the contract. It will be the goal of the BOARD and the ASSOCIATION to have the school calendar

- agreed upon prior to May 1. The ASSOCATION recognizes that the BOARD has the right under PERA to establish the starting day for the school year.
- B. As long as state law requires that school make up snow days in order to receive full state aid payments, the following shall apply:
 - Necessary make-up days to meet the state requirement for providing hours
 of student instruction as set forth in Section 380.1284 of the Revised
 School Code and the State School Aid Act shall be scheduled in whole and
 partial days according to the following:

Time Required to Be Made Up

1-3 Hours

Over 3 Hours

Make-Up Days

1/2 Day

Full Day

- C. In the event that it becomes necessary for the Superintendent to cancel school because of Acts of God or other conditions not within the control of school authorities such as fire, epidemics, mechanical breakdowns or health conditions, as defined by the city, county, or state health authorities, the teachers will not be required to report for duty nor shall the calendar be adjusted to make up for the lost hours unless such adjustment in the calendar is required by state law for the District to receive state aid. Such required make-up hours shall be added to the end of the school calendar unless otherwise mutually agreed by the BOARD and the ASSOCIATION with no additional pay.
- D. The calendar(s) for the school year(s) shall be set forth in Appendix C.

ARTICLE 22 Negotiation Procedures

- A. The ASSOCIATION shall designate a teacher in each school building as ASSOCIATION Representative (A.R.). The principal and ASSOCIATION Representative may, upon request, meet at least once a month for the purpose of reviewing the administration of the Agreement and of resolving problems which may arise. These meetings are not intended to bypass the grievance procedure.
- B. Between March 1 and March 15, the parties shall initiate negotiating for the purpose of entering into a successor Agreement for the forthcoming year. Release time shall be provided to the ASSOCIATION'S negotiating committee to permit the parties to alternately meet both during and after regular school hours for the purpose of reaching a successor Agreement as rapidly as possible.
- C. Neither party in any negotiations shall have any control over the selection of the negotiating or bargaining representatives of the other party. The parties mutually pledge that their representatives will have all necessary power and authority to make proposals, consider proposals, and make concessions in the course of negotiations.

D. There shall be three (3) signed copies of the final Agreement for the purpose of the record, one (1) retained by the BOARD, one (1) by the ASSOCIATION, and one (1) by the Superintendent.

ARTICLE 23 Seniority

- A. No later than thirty (30) days following ratification of this Agreement and by every September 30 thereafter, a seniority list shall be prepared.
 - Duly elected ASSOCIATION officers whose presence is necessary to ensure that
 the collective bargaining agreement is followed and enforced shall be placed at
 the top of the seniority list and shall remain at the top of the list during their terms
 of office. The ASSOCIATION will notify the BOARD no later than March 30th of
 each year of the officers for the following school year.
 - All teachers shall be ranked on the list in order of their beginning date of employment in this school district. The beginning date of employment shall be the first contract day worked according to the school calendar for that year.
 - 3. If two (2) or more teachers are found to have equal status in two (2) above, the teacher possessing the most teaching experience shall be placed higher on the seniority list.
 - 4. If two (2) or more teachers are found to have equal status in two (2) and three (3) above, the teacher possessing the higher degree shall receive the higher ranking on the seniority list.
 - 5. If two (2) or more teachers are found to have equal status in two (2), three (3), and four (4) above, the teacher possessing the greater number of hours beyond his/her degree shall receive the higher ranking on the seniority list.
 - 6. If two or more teachers are found to have equal status in two (2), three (3), four (4), and five (5) above, the teachers so affected will participate in a drawing by lot to determine position on the seniority list. The ASSOCIATION and teachers so affected shall be notified in writing of the date, place, and time of the drawing conducted by the Superintendent and ASSOCIATION President. The drawing shall be conducted openly and at a time and place which will reasonably allow affected teachers and ASSOCIATION Representatives to be in attendance.
 - The seniority list shall be published and posted conspicuously in all buildings of the district. Periodic revisions shall be derived, published, and posted in the same manner as described above.
 - 8. All seniority is lost when there is a break in service. However, seniority is retained if the break in service is due to layoff or leave of absence.

B. Seniority Verification Form (Appendix G) - Following individual consultation with each teacher, a Seniority Verification Form shall be completed and signed by the Superintendent and the respective teacher. The Seniority Verification Form shall be placed in the teacher's personnel file with a copy given to the teacher. If interruptions of service necessitate modifications or adjustments in the seniority date, a new Verification Form shall be completed following the same procedure as provided herein. The signed Seniority Verification Form shall become the governing document for the identification of a teacher's seniority date. A copy of any new or changed form will be immediately provided to the ASSOCIATION President.

ARTICLE 24 Reduction in Personnel

A. The parties agree a displacement has occurred whenever a position is eliminated, but there are enough remaining positions for all bargaining unit members to continue to be employed at the same number of hours they previously held. The parties agree that the intent of this staffing process is to retain all currently employed bargaining unit members whenever possible.

ARTICLE 25 Teaching Conditions

- A. All employees shall receive a pass to all school sponsored activities such as athletic and fine arts events. When teachers do attend athletic events, they will accept, indirectly, professional responsibility for the discipline of the students.
 - All bargaining unit employees and their immediate family members will receive an annual pass for the Spartan Center. When teachers are in the Spartan Center, they will accept, indirectly, professional responsibility for the discipline of the students.
- B. The BOARD recognizes that appropriate texts, instructional technology, educational software, library reference facilities, maps and globes, laboratory equipment, audiovisual equipment, art supplies, athletic equipment, current periodicals, standard tests and questionnaires, and similar materials are the tools of the teaching profession. Therefore, the BOARD will make every attempt to ensure teachers have the resources they need in order to be more effective in the classroom.
- C. The BOARD agrees to procure a substitute for an absent teacher rather than use a regular employee of the school except in an emergency. The BOARD agrees that every effort will be made not to remove a teacher from his/her regular classroom assignment. By mutual agreement, the building representative and the building principal shall resolve emergency situations.

- D. The parties recognize the need for parental involvement as part of the educational process. Parents/guardians who wish to visit a classroom shall stop in the office to register and get a visitor pass before proceeding to classroom areas or visiting classrooms. As provided by law, parents/guardians will not be allowed to visit the classroom when testing is taking place.
 - 1. Administrators or administrative assistant will call the teacher's classroom to give them advance notice and input about the visit.
 - 2. Administrators will not allow visitors in the teacher's classroom when in the judgment of the administrator and teacher the visitor will be detrimental to the educational process or safety of teacher and/or student(s).
 - 3. Parents or visitors who wish to participate in the educational process need to make arrangements with the teacher and principal at least 24 hours in advance.
 - 4. Any prospective families or visitor(s) must contact the building principal who will consult with the classroom teacher to determine the appropriateness and timing of the visit.

E. Personnel File:

- Each teacher shall have the right, upon request, to review the contents of his/her personnel file. Personnel file information shall not be stored on any computer with unsecured access. A representative of the ASSOCIATION may, at the teacher's request, accompany the teacher in this review.
- 2. In the event that a court order is presented for information from the personnel file, the teacher shall be promptly provided with a copy of the court order. Information from the teacher personnel file may not be released to third parties who are not representatives or agents of the District without prior written permission of the teacher, unless such release is required by law.
- 3. Each teacher's file shall contain the following minimum items of information:
 - a. All teacher evaluation reports
 - b. Copies of annual contracts
 - c. Teaching certification
 - d. Tenure recommendation
- 4. When information is placed in a teacher's personnel file, he/she shall be notified in writing. The teacher may place in his/her file, at any time, a rebuttal to any material of any nature and said response shall become a part of said file.
- 5. Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Requests:

To the extent permitted by law, the Board of Education shall require that any request for information from a teacher's personnel file shall be placed in writing, and shall be specific regarding the information requested. A copy of the request shall be furnished to the ASSOCIATION President and the affected teacher. The administration shall provide the list of documents to be released. If

the individual teacher wishes to write a response to any discipline or evaluative records which are to be released, they shall do so within five (5) days. The individual teacher's written response shall accompany the released documents. Only to the extent permitted by law is requested information to be released. The individual teacher shall receive copies of all released information.

- a. All documents, communications or records dealing with a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel files of participants.
- b. All medical records and references to any medical condition shall be kept separate from the personnel file.
- F. Teachers may be excused from their duties ahead of time by the building principal.
- G. Building administrators and their staff will select a day for staff meetings and professional development. Administrators cannot schedule more than four (4) meetings per month and only as necessary.

At least eighteen (18) days shall be set aside for staff meetings devoted to professional development. Professional development meetings will begin at the end of the school day and will be one hour in length and conclude no later than 4:15 pm. Notice of meetings shall be given one (1) week in advance by the administrator.

Regular staff meetings will begin at the end of the school day and will last no longer than 4:15 pm. Notice of after school staff meetings will be given one week in advance by the administrator. The parties further agree that due to certain circumstances, such notice may not be afforded.

A tentative schedule of after school meetings will be distributed to teachers at the beginning of the school year.

- H. Every effort will be made to limit secondary teachers to no more than four (4) preparations per year.
- 1. Teachers shall be required to attend up to six (6) evening meetings per year as negotiated in the calendar. Required meetings scheduled to start later than one (1) hour after the end of the work day or run later than one (1) hour after the end of the work day shall be considered an evening meeting and shall be announced in advance. Any function or activity beyond the six (6) evening meetings shall be compensated at the rate of \$30.00 per event, unless covered elsewhere in the Agreement.
- J. Attending graduation ceremonies by high school teachers is required. It is strongly encouraged that all other teachers attend.
- K. Part-time teachers shall have a pro-rated planning time based either on the number of instructional periods taught per day at the secondary level or hours of instruction per day at the elementary level.

L. A teacher engaged during the school day in negotiating on behalf of the ASSOCIATION with any representative of the BOARD or participating in any professional grievance negotiation shall be released from regular duties without loss of salary, paid leave day, or Association day.

ARTICLE 26 Miscellaneous Provisions

- A. This Agreement shall constitute the full and complete commitments between both parties and may be altered, changed, added to, deleted from, or modified only through the voluntary, mutual consent of the parties in written signed amendment to this Agreement.
- B. Copies of this Agreement shall be printed at the expense of the BOARD within thirty (30) days after the Agreement is signed and presented to all teachers now employed or hereafter employed by the BOARD. Further, the BOARD shall furnish ten (10) copies of the MASTER AGREEMENT to the ASSOCIATION for its use.
- C. Any individual contract between the BOARD and an individual teacher, heretofore executed, shall be subject to and consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Any individual contract hereafter executed shall be expressly made subject to and consistent with the terms of this or subsequent Agreements to be executed by the parties. If an individual contract contains any language inconsistent with this Agreement, during its duration, shall be controlling.
- D. If any provision of this Agreement or any application of the Agreement to any employee or group of employees shall be found contrary to Michigan Law, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.
- E. The terms and conditions of this contract shall remain in force until a successor agreement is entered into by the parties concerned.
- F. An emergency manager appointment under the Local and Government and School District Fiscal Accountability Act may reject, modify, or terminate the Agreement as provided in that Act. MCL 141.1501 et seq.

ARTICLE 27 Duration of Agreement

This agreement shall be effective as of June 14, 2018, and shall continue in effect until June 30, 2019.

WEBBERVILLE EDUCATION ASSOCIATION	WEBBERVILLE BOARD OF EDUCATION
By: President	By: De President
By: Cynum Millonium Secretary	By: LILLIAN Secretary
Date: 7/12/18	Date: 7/19/18

APPENDIX A

2017 - 2018 Salary Schedule Effective June 13, 2018

(See Article 18, Compensation, Section E)

	<u>BA</u>	BA+18	MA	MA+20
Step 1	\$32,680	\$33,487	\$34,288	\$34,911
Step 2	\$33,761	\$35,203	\$35,950	\$36,650
Step 3	\$36,474	\$37,863	\$39,604	\$40,302
Step 4	\$38,424	\$40,159	\$41,901	\$42,602
Step 5	\$39,813	\$41,901	\$43,985	\$44,687
Step 6	\$41,401	\$43,666	\$45,938	\$46,642
Step 7	\$42,791	\$45,413	\$48,035	\$48,738
Step 8	\$44,544	\$47,504	\$49,780	\$50,480
Step 9	\$46,642	\$49,086	\$51,525	\$52,228
Step 10	\$48,387	\$51,007	\$53,624	\$54,326
Step 11	\$49,727	\$52,697	\$55,670	\$56,372
Longevity	12-14 yrs	\$4,323		
	15-17 yrs	\$5,191		
	18-20 yrs	\$5,783		
	21-23 yrs	\$6,223		
	24-27 yrs	\$6,665		
	28-30 yrs	\$7,189		
	30+ yrs	\$8,864		

Each longevity increase applies only once in each period indicated. Longevity credit refers to accumulated years of credit accepted by and earned in Webberville Schools.

Upon providing written confirmation of additional hours' salary schedule track advancement shall occur at the next regular pay period. Refer to Appendix D.

Term hours shall be equated as 2/3 of a semester hour. Ten (10) SB-CEU hours (State Board Continuing Education Units), acquired within a five-year period of the application date for salary lane change (Appendix D), shall be credited as one (1) semester hour.

APPENDIX A

2018 - 2019 Salary Schedule Effective July 1, 2018

(See Article 18, Compensation, Section E)

	<u>BA</u>	<u>BA+18</u>	<u>MA</u>	MA+20
Step 1	\$32,980	\$33,787	\$34,588	\$35,211
Step 2	\$34,061	\$35,503	\$36,250	\$36,950
Step 3	\$36,774	\$38,163	\$39,904	\$40,602
Step 4	\$38,724	\$40,459	\$42,201	\$42,902
Step 5	\$40,113	\$42,201	\$44,285	\$44,987
Step 6	\$41,701	\$43,966	\$46,238	\$46,942
Step 7	\$43,091	\$45,713	\$48,335	\$49,038
Step 8	\$44,844	\$47,804	\$50,080	\$50,780
Step 9	\$46,942	\$49,386	\$51,825	\$52,528
Step 10	\$48,687	\$51,307	\$53,924	\$54,626
Step 11	\$50,027	\$52,997	\$55,970	\$56,672
Longevity	12-14 yrs	\$4,323		
	15-17 yrs	\$5,191		
	18-20 yrs	\$5,783		
	21-23 yrs	\$6,223		
	24-27 yrs	\$6,665		
	28-29 yrs	\$7,189		
	30+ yrs	\$8,864		

Each longevity increase applies only once in each period indicated. Longevity credit refers to accumulated years of credit accepted by and earned in Webberville Schools.

Upon providing written confirmation of additional hours' salary schedule track advancement shall occur at the next regular pay period. Refer to Appendix D.

Term hours shall be equated as 2/3 of a semester hour. Ten (10) SB-CEU hours (State Board Continuing Education Units), acquired within a five-year period of the application date for salary lane change (Appendix D), shall be credited as one (1) semester hour.

APPENDIX B

Extra-Curricular Assignments

- A. Coaches and sponsors will be paid on the appropriate step of the BA schedule. Coaches and sponsors who are new to the system may be given up to five (5) years credit for previous experience in an activity.
- B. Teacher currently in the system retain all previous experience credit, and if new to an activity, may transfer up to five (5) years credit.
- C. The BOARD supports a philosophy of filling coaching positions from within its own teaching staff. Varsity coaching position shall be posted within and outside of the bargaining unit. All bargaining unit employees applying for a position shall be granted an interview. If there is an outside applicant who has substantially superior qualifications, the BOARD may hire the outside applicant.

APPENDIX B Extra-Curricular Salary Schedule

Athletica		Class Snamara	
Athletics	40.00/	Class Sponsors	C 000/
Varsity Boys' Basketball JV Boys' Basketball	10.0% \$2250	Seniors (2) Juniors (2)	6.00% 3.50%
7th and 8th Grade Boys' Basketball	\$2230 \$1100	Sophomores (1)	1.25%
Varsity Girls' Basketball	10.0%	Freshman (1)	1.00%
JV Girls' Basketball	\$2250	8 th Grade	1.00%
7th and 8th Grade Girls' Basketball	\$1100	7 th Grade	1.00%
Sideline Varsity Cheer	\$500	6 th Grade	0.50%
JV Sideline Cheer	\$500	(The percentage to be divided evenly between sponsors.)	
Varsity Boys' Baseball	10%	Activities	
JV Boys' Baseball	\$1500	High School Yearbook	4.50%
Varsity Girls' Softball	10%	Elementary Yearbook	1.75%
JV Girls' Softball	\$1500	High School Student Council	3.75%
Varsity Football	10.0%	Elementary Student Council	.85%
JV Football	\$1500	Summer AG Program	14.00%
Varsity Track, Boys	10%	High School F.F.A.	5.00%
Varsity Track, Girls		, and the second	
MS Track Boys	\$1100	Middle School F.F.A.	0.75%
MS Track Girls			
Varsity Girls' Volleyball	10%	Project PALS	0.75%
JV Girls' Volleyball	\$1500	ROOTS	1.50%
MS Volleyball	\$1100	National Honor Society	1.50%
Varsity Competitive Cheer	10%	Spanish Club	.625%
MS Cheerleading	\$500	Science Club-MS	.50%
Varsity Wrestling Coach	10%	Science Club-HS	.50%
JV Wrestling Coach	\$1500	Robotics	1.25%
MS Wrestling Coach	\$1100	Safety Patrol	.50%
HS Assistant Coach	\$750	Mentor Teacher per Mentee	1.00%
Weight Training Coach	\$2,000	Department Chair Stipends: English, Fine Arts, Math, Physical Education, Science,	1.00%
		Social Studies, Special Education, Vocational Education,	
		Elementary Teacher Leaders (5)	
		•	
		Fine Arts	
		High School Play (per play)	3.15%
		High School Theatre Assistant (per play)	1.35%
		Set Construction (per play or Musical)	1.35%
		Musical Director	3.50%
	•	Musical Producer	3.50%
		Musical Asst.	2.50%
		Elementary Musical Production Choir Director	2.70% 8.00%
		K-5 Elementary Music Performance	3.50%
		(minimum of 2 performances)	5.5076
		Band Director	9.00%
		Flag Corp	2.50%
		Art Club Grades 7-12	.50%

APPENDIX C School Calendar

				WEBBER	VILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOLS	3			ı	
				201	8-2019 Calendar FINAL					
<u>M</u> <u>T</u>	W	<u>TH</u>	<u>F</u>	_	New Teacher Orientation	<u>M</u>	I	W	<u>TH</u>	F
<u>lugust</u>					District Wide Employee Meeting					
13 14		16		•	Teacher PD Days	<u>Janu</u> ;	ary ,,	,		
20 21 27 28		23 30	24 31	•	Picnic 5-6 PM, K-12 Open House 5:30-6:30 PM	r 7	. 1 8	2′ 9'	3 ¹ 10	. 1
21 20		. 30	31		Students' First Day	14	15	16	17	
eptembe				-	NO SCHOOL NO SCHOOL Labor Day Weekend	21	22	23	24	. :
ортоннос		7		Aug 31-3ep 3	NO SCHOOL Land Day Weekelin	28	29	30	31	
3 ⁴	5	6	7	Sen 19	Students Released at 1:00 PM - Staff PD				•	
10 11	12	13	14			Febru	ıarv			
17 18	19^	20	21	Oct 3	P/T Conferences-All Levels-Evening 4:00-7:00				-	
24 25	26	27	28	Oct 4	P/T Conferences-All Levels-Evening 4:00-7:00	7 4	5.	6	7.	
				Oct 5	NO SCHOOL	' 11	12	13	14	
				Oct 19	End of 1st Quarter-Secondary	´ 18	19	20'	21	
ctober		ļ ļ		Oct 24	Students Released at 1:00 PM - Staff PD	25	26	27^	28	
1 2	3		_						-	
8 9		[11]			End of First Trimester-Elementary	Marci	1			
15 16		18			NO SCHOOL - Thanksglving Recess		,		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	,
	24^	: !	26	Nov 28	Students Released at 1:00 PM - Staff PD	4	5	6,	. 7	
29′ 30	31		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			11	12	13	14	
					End of First Semester-Secondary	18	19	20^	21	
					Half Day - Teacher Work Day	25	26	27	28	(2
<u>ovember</u>				Dec 24 - Jan 4	NO SCHOOL - Winter Recess					
5 6	7	1 8	. 2		P/T Conferences-All Levels-Evening 4:00-7:00	<u>April</u> 1	2	3		
12 13	14	1 1	16		NO SCHOOL - President's Day Weekend	8		10	11:	
19 20		in a si	23		Students Released at 1:00 PM - Staff PD	15	16	17	18	
	28^			160 21	Students Neieased at 1.00 FM - Stan FD	, 22	23	24^		. '
				Mar 1	End of Second Trimester-Elementary	29	30	· · · ·		:
ecember				Mar 15	End of 3rd Quarter-Secondary	:				
3 4	5	. 6	7	Mar 20	Students Released at 1:00 PM - Staff PD	May				
10 11	12	13	14	Mar 29	Half Day - Students and Staff			1	2	
17 18	19	20	(21)			′ 6	7"	8	9,	
24 25	26	27	28	Apr 1-5	NO SCHOOL-Spring Recess	⁷ 13	14	15	16	
31				Apr 19	Half Day - Students and Staff	20	21	22	23	:
				Apr 24	Students Released at 1:00 PM - Staff PD	27	28	29	(30)	(3
				=	Last Day Seniors					
		ļ :			Graduation at 7:00 PM	June				
		:	r		NO SCHOOL - Memorial Day	, ,				
				•	Half Day Students - Teacher Work Day PM Last Day Students	3	4			
		: :	*	lun 9 4	Teacher Flex Days					
		. !		JUII 3-4	reducted Flex Days					
						i				
	stude	nt De	lys and	Hours	Staff PD Days					
					August 14, August 15		ykan Kana			
Stude		/s =	180		September 19, October 24					
Full da			169 5		28-Nov 27-Feb					
Half d Early I		- 20	6		27-Feb March 20, April 24					
-0119	·	-	ara 🕶 🗀			are10% bar	e grays	molii	1. 4.30%	460

Revised 5-31-18

APPENDIX C School Calendar

	WEBBER	VILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOLS	3
	201	9-2020 Calendar FINAL	,
M I W TH F	Aug 12	New Teacher Orientation	M I W TH E
August	Aug 13	District Wide Employee Meeting	
12 13 14 15 16	Aug 13 & 14	Teacher PD Days	January
19 20 21 22 23	Aug 14	Picnic 5-6 PM, K-12 Open House 5:30-6:30 PM	1 1 2 °
26 27 28 29 30	Aug 19	Students' First Day	[6' 7' 8' 9' 1
	Aug 23	NO SCHOOL	13 14 15 16 1
September	Aug 30-Sept 2	NO SCHOOL Labor Day Weekend	20 21 22 23 2
2 3 4 5 6			[27 28 29 30 3
9 10 11 12 13	Sept 25	Students Released at 1:00 PM - Staff PD	
17 18 19 20 21			<u>February</u>
23 24 25 ^ 26 27	Oct 2	P/T Conferences-All Levels-Evening 4:00-7:00	3 4 5 6
30	Oct 3	P/T Conferences-All Levels-Evening 4:00-7:00	[10 11 12 13 1
		NO SCHOOL	17 18 19 20 2
		End of 1st Quarter - Secondary	24 25 26^ 27 2
<u>October</u>	Oct 23	Students Released at 1:00 PM - Staff PD	
[1 2 3 4			
7 8 9 10 11	Nov 15	End of First Trimester-Elementary	<u>March</u>
14 15 16 17 18	Nov 20-22	NO SCHOOL - Thanksgiving Recess	2 3 4 5
21 22 23^ 24 25	Nov 27	Students Released at 1:00 PM - Staff PD	9 10 11 12 1
28 29 30 31			16 17 18 19 2
	Dec 20	Half Day Students - Teacher Work Day	23 24 25^ 26 2
		End of First Semester-Secondary	30 31
ovember	Dec 23 - Jan 3	NO SCHOOL - Winter Recess	
1			<u>April</u>
4 5 6 7 8	Feb 13	P/T Conferences-All Levels-Evening 4:00-7:00	1 2 (3
11 12 13 14 15	Feb 14-17	NO SCHOOL - President's Day Weekend	6 7 8 9 1
18. 19 20 21 22	Feb 26	Students Released at 1:00 PM - Staff PD	13 13 15 16 1
25 26 27^ 28 29	Feb 28	End of Second Trimester-Elementary	20 21 22^ 23 2
			27 28 29 30
<u>ecember</u>	Mar 13	End of 3rd Quarter-Secondary	
2 3 4 5 6	Mar 25	Students Released at 1:00 PM - Staff PD	<u>May</u>
9 10 11 12 13			i .
16 17 18 19 (20)	April 3	Half Day Students and Staff	4 5 6 7
23 24 25 26 27	April 6-10	NO SCHOOL-Spring Recess	11 12 13 14 1
30 31	April 22	Students Released at 1:00 PM - Staff PD	18 19 20 21 2
			25 26 27 (28) (29
	May 15	Last Day Seniors	
	May 21	Graduation at 7:00 PM	
	May 25	NO SCHOOL - Memorial Day	<u>June</u>
	May 28-29	Half Day Students - Teacher Work Day PM	
	May 29	Last Day Students	.1 2
			:
	June 1-2	Teacher Flex Days	
			<u></u>
			:
Student Days and I	lours	Staff PD Days	
		August 13, August 14	
Student Days = 180		September 25, October 23	
Full days = 170		27-Nov	
Half days = 4		26-Feb	
Early Release = 6		March 25, April 22	
o respectivitativės takie Matievistai Pėlieti	หางสายหลายเกม ได้ เรียงสำหรับเห	Ingliffugita, komega og gjarjegt, talkalarna anne molitik kom ka	anera 🗈 nen ere ere erafne hût lâtterêre trûdike

APPENDIX D Salary Lane Change Guidelines

- A. Credit for hours earned after the BA will begin after the date of the teacher's certificate. Beginning with the 2006-07 school year, first year teacher who have completed an approved teacher preparation program requiring an internship of actual student teaching experience equaling 28 or more weeks of classroom teaching shall be placed on Step 2 of appropriate salary lane.
- B. The bargaining unit employees shall submit an application for Credit Approval for Track Advancement to the Superintendent (Appendix D-1). Any course work taken for track advancement must be approved by the Superintendent prior to the start of a class.
- C. When undergraduate courses are taken with the expectation of qualifying for advancement on the salary schedule, such as in the case of computer courses or employer-required courses or other courses directly related to the bargaining unit employee's employment with the District, the bargaining unit employee shall seek advance approval in writing from the Superintendent whose decision shall be final.
- D. It shall be the bargaining unit employee's responsibility to provide proof of the graduate status of the hours earned through appropriate college or university catalogs or other indicators. It is understood that if graduate or undergraduate hours are part of a masters or doctoral program, they will be accepted.
- E. The bargaining unit employee shall be responsible for submitting the Salary Lane Change Request form (Appendix D-2). Upon providing written confirmation of additional hours, salary schedule track advancement shall occur at the next regular pay period.
- F. An ongoing Joint Committee shall be established to review and make modifications of the criteria utilized to determine eligible credited hours for track advancement on the Salary Schedule. The committee shall consist of two (2) teachers appointed by the ASSOCIATION and two (2) Administrators appointed by the Superintendent. The committee shall meet as needed. Either the Administration representatives or the ASSOCIATION Representatives may call for a meeting of the Joint Committee.

APPENDIX D-1

Credit Approval for Track Advancement Application

It is mutually agreed by the Webberville Community Schools and the Webberville Education ASSOCIATION that the following will govern in determining eligible credited hours for track advancement on the salary schedule:

The Superintendent must pre-approve all college credits or continuing education credits for eligibility towards track advancement on the salary schedule. College credits or continuing education credits which pertain to or enhance a teacher's present teaching assignment or credits in the field of education will be considered for salary advancement.

•		
Name	Teaching Assignment	Date
l am applying for approval of tl advancement on the salary sch	he following college credit or continuing nedule.	g education credit for track
Course number and title	Dept	Credits
Course description		
Reason for taking course		
Location	Instructor	
Institution granting credit		
Beginning date	Completion date _	
		WALLES AND ADDRESS
Teacher Signature APPROVAL GRANTED APPROVAL DENIED		
Superintendent Signature	Date	
Grades Received:	Grade Passed	Failed

APPENDIX D-2 Salary Lane Change Request Form

	•	o the Master Agreement virtue of continued educ	
Change Reque	sted (circle one):		
į.	3A +18 semester ho	ours	
1	Masters		
1	Masters +20 semest	er hours	
held for process however, a lette	sing and no adjustmer of verification fron steed until the current	ents will be made until a	
Date:			
		For Office Use C	nly
Previous	s: Lane	Step	Salary
New:	Lane	Step	Salary
Approved _	Disap	proved	
			Superintendent of Schools

APPENDIX E Grievance Report Form

Grievance #	School Year	***************************************
Distribution of Form: Principal Superintendent Board of Education (level 3)	Teacher Building Representative Association President	
LEVEL ONE/FIRST STEP - INFOR	RMAL DISCUSSION WITH BUILDING PRINCIPA	<u>AL</u>
Date of Meeting:		
Issue:		ANTO ANTO ANTO ANTO ANTO ANTO ANTO ANTO
Resolution:		
Signatures: Principal	Teacher	
Building Representative		
	RMAL GRIEVANCE FORM FILED WITH PRINC	
, -	an 10 work days after the informal discussion with the	. , ,
Date of Meeting:	(Meeting must occur within 5 works days of	receipt of grievance)
Date alleged grievance occurred		
Statement of grievance:		
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Sections or subsections of contract alle	ged to be violated.	
Relief requested:		
Signature of Grievant:	Nate:	

Grievance Report Form, page two Decision of building principal (within 5 work days of meeting):					
Signature of Principal:	Date:				
LEVEL TWO – SUPERINTENDENT (Grievance hand delivered to Superintendent w	vithin 5 work days of the principal's decision)				
Date of discussion with the Superintendent:	(Meeting to occur within 7 work days of receipt of grievance)				
Decision of Superintendent (within 5 work days					
Signature of Signature:	Date:				
LEVEL THREE – BOARD OF EDUCATIO (Grievance submitted to Board of Education wi	N thin 5 work days of the Superintendent's decision)				
Date of discussion with Board of Education:	(Next regular meeting or 10 work days, whichever is later)				
Decision of Board of Education (within 7 work o	days of meeting):				
Signature of Board President:	Date:				
LEVEL FOUR - ARBITRATION					
Date submitted to arbitration (within 30 calenda	ar days of BOARD decision)				

APPENDIX F

Statement of Intent to Return and Assignment Preference

	current teaching position in the fall of the school year.	intena to
In addition, if t	the following position(s) were to become vacant, I request reassignment/transfer t	to the
position(s) of:	-, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
Preference O	One One	

Reasons		
Qualifications		
Preference T	`wo	
Reasons		
Qualifications		
	I fully intend to return for the next school year.	
WITH THE PARTY AND THE PARTY A	My intent to return for the next school year is uncertain at this time.	
	der the above request(s) as an application for the position(s).	
Teacher's Sig	nature	
Date:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Copies to Asse	ociation President and Superintendent by May 15 th .	

APPENDIX G Seniority Verification Form

Teachers Name:				 	
Official Start Date:				 	
Certifications:					
Degrees:					
Credits Beyond Degre	ee:				
Majors/Minors:					
Endorsements:				 	
Previous Service:	***************************************				
Areas of Highly Quali	fied:			 	
If a teacher's official st Article 23 are equal, the the results will be listed	en a drawing will tak				
1.			4		
2.			5	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
3.		·	6		
To be filled out in the D	istrict Administration	Office	<u> </u>	,	
Leaves of Absences:					
Reasons:	***************************************				
Dates:				 	
•					

This form will be kept in the teacher's personnel file, to be updated yearly by the District Office and used to develop the seniority list.